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Statement of Financial Position 
 

 
($000s)  

 June 30,  
2015 

December 31, 
2014 

  (unaudited)  
ASSETS     
    
CURRENT    
 Accounts receivable   47,818 65,135 
 Deposits and prepaid expenses  19,437 14,423 
 Fair value of financial derivatives (note 13)  29,583 65,438 

  96,838 144,996 
    
Exploration and evaluation assets (note 4)  1,519 5,635 
Property and equipment (note 5)  1,555,022 1,627,050 
Deferred income tax asset  168,790 162,025 
Fair value of financial derivatives (note 13)  848 - 

  1,823,017 1,939,706 

 
 

 
  

LIABILITIES    
    
CURRENT    
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  75,558 132,439 

Bank loan (note 7)  245,000 100,000 
 Fair value of financial derivatives (note 13)  336 336 

  320,894 232,775 
    
Bank loan (note 7)  380,943 511,717 
Convertible debentures (note 8)  68,846 68,145 
Decommissioning liabilities (note 6)  410,267 411,209 
Fair value of financial derivatives (note 13)  140 85 

  1,181,090 1,223,931 

    
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY    
    
Share capital (note 9)  1,006,799 1,006,799 
Equity component of convertible debentures (note 8)  3,483 3,483 
Contributed surplus (note 9)  28,652 26,160 
Retained earnings (deficit)  (397,007) (320,667) 

  641,927 715,775 

  1,823,017 1,939,706 

Commitments and contingencies (note 15) 

 
 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.  
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Statement of Earnings (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss)  
 

 
Three months ended 

June 30 
 Six months ended 

June 30 

($000s, except per share amounts) (unaudited) 2015 2014  2015 2014 

      
INCOME      
   

 
  

Petroleum and natural gas revenue 93,436 158,678  174,760 310,564 
Royalties (6,400) (17,598)  (12,721) (36,064) 

 87,036 141,080  162,039 274,500 
Gain (loss) on financial derivatives (note 13)  

 - realized  16,432 (10,157) 
 

42,277 (17,579) 
 - unrealized  (27,587) 972    (35,062) (9,811) 

 75,881 131,895  169,254 247,110 
      
EXPENSES      
      
Operating 36,207 37,614  77,391 73,808 
Transportation 4,784 5,287  10,205 10,830 
General and administration (note 11) 7,929 9,134  14,335 17,863 
Share-based compensation (note 9) 823 593  1,773 1,175 
Interest  8,624 5,507  16,499 10,423 
Accretion (note 6, 8) 2,665 2,659  5,340 4,781 
Depletion and depreciation (note 5) 58,103 50,460  118,687 100,123 
Exploration - (48)  4 518 
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets (note 5) 6,882 (7,356)  4,739 (9,684) 

 126,017 103,850  248,973 209,837 
      
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (50,136) 28,045  (79,719) 37,273 
   

 
  

      
Income taxes       
 Deferred income tax expense (recovery) - 7,203  (6,765) 9,660 

      
 
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) AND 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (50,136) 20,842 

 

(72,954) 27,613 
    

    

 

 

  

NET EARNINGS (LOSS) AND 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) PER 
SHARE (note 9)   

 

  
 Basic (0.26) 0.16  (0.38) 0.21 
 Diluted (0.26) 0.15  (0.38) 0.21 
      

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity 
 

($000s) (unaudited) 

Share 
Capital 

Equity 
Component of 

Convertible 
Debentures 

 
Contributed 

Surplus 

  Retained 
Earnings 
(Deficit) Total 

 (note 9) (note 8) (note 9)   
      
January 1, 2014 657,666 - 23,377 (64,066)   616,977 

Issuance of common shares  346,317 - - - 346,317 
Share-based compensation  - - 3,440 - 3,440 
Options exercised 2,816 - (657) - 2,159 
Comprehensive loss - - - (190,395) (190,395) 
Dividends declared (note 9) - - - (66,206) (66,206) 
Convertible debentures issued - 3,483 - - 3,483 

December 31, 2014 1,006,799 3,483 26,160 (320,667) 715,775 
Share-based compensation  - - 2,492 - 2,492 
Comprehensive loss - - - (72,954) (72,954) 
Dividends declared (note 9) - - - (3,386) (3,386) 

June 30, 2015 1,006,799 3,483 28,652 (397,007) 641,927 

 
January 1, 2014 657,666 - 23,377 (64,066)   616,977 

Issuance of common shares 115,168 - - - 115,168 
Share-based compensation  - - 1,842 - 1,842 
Options exercised 2,396 - (559) - 1,837 
Comprehensive earnings - - - 27,613 27,613 
Dividends declared (note 9) - - - (27,107) (27,107) 
Convertible debentures issued - 3,483 - -  3,483 

June 30, 2014 775,230 3,483 24,660 (63,560) 739,813 

 
 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 

($000s) (unaudited) 

Three months ended 
June 30 

 Six months ended 
June 30 

 2015 2014   2015 2014 
      

Cash provided by (used in):      

      

OPERATING ACTIVITIES      

Net earnings (loss)  (50,136) 20,842  (72,954) 27,613 

Items not requiring cash:      

Unrealized loss (gain) on financial derivatives (note 13) 27,587 (972)  35,062 9,811 

Share-based compensation (note 9) 823 593  1,773 1,175 

Accretion (note 6, 8) 2,665 2,659  5,340 4,781 

Depletion and depreciation (note 5)  58,103 50,460  118,687 100,123 

Loss (gain) on disposal of assets (note 5) 6,882 (7,356)  4,739 (9,684) 

Deferred income tax expense (recovery)   - 7,203  (6,765) 9,660 

Abandonment costs (note 6) (364) (697)  (2,981) (2,043) 

Change in non-cash working capital (note 14) (7,975) (5,452)  3,516 (14,375) 

 37,585 67,280  86,417 127,061 

      

      

INVESTING ACTIVITIES      

Capital expenditures (note 4, 5) (8,770) (57,330)  (54,085) (158,179) 

Acquisitions (note 5) (552) (233,610)  (1,147) (238,372) 

Dispositions (note 5) 10,082 19,894  12,069 28,336 

Change in non-cash working capital (note 14) (35,886) (20,790)  (44,622) 5,122 

 (35,126) (291,836)  (87,785) (363,093) 

      

FINANCING ACTIVITIES      

Bank loan issuance 241 123,559  14,226 70,947 

Issuance of convertible debentures, net of costs (note 8)  - (7)  - 71,566 

Dividends declared (note 9) - (14,468)  (3,386) (27,107) 

Issuance of common shares (note 9) - 120,902  - 121,840 

Share issue costs (note 9) - (6,450)  - (6,450) 

Change in non-cash working capital (note 14)  (2,700) 1,020  (9,472) 5,236 

 (2,459) 224,556  1,368 236,032 

      

CHANGE IN CASH  - -  - - 

CASH, BEGINNING OF PERIOD - -  - - 

CASH, END OF PERIOD - -  - - 

      
      
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION      
 Interest paid 6,824 4,226  15,236 8,100 
 
 

     

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.      
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1. REPORTING ENTITY 
 

Long Run Exploration Ltd. (“Long Run” or the “Company”), is incorporated under the Business 
Corporations Act (Alberta).  
 
The Company is in the business of development, acquisition, exploration and production of oil and 
natural gas in western Canada. 
 
The principal address of the Company is located at 400, 250 2

nd
 Street SW, Calgary, Alberta, T2P 

0C1. Long Run’s outstanding common shares and convertible debentures are listed on the Toronto 
Stock Exchange under the symbols “LRE” and “LRE.DB”, respectively. 

 
 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION  
 

These interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) applicable to the preparation of interim financial statements, including 
IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting. The interim financial statements do not include all of the 
information required for full annual financial statements. Accordingly, the interim financial statements 
should be read in conjunction with the annual audited financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2014. 
 
The interim financial statements follow the same accounting policies as the annual audited financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2014. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where noted in the 
accounting policies. The financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars. 
 
The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on July 29, 2015. 
 
 

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

There were no new or amended standards issued during the six months ended June 30, 2015 that 
are applicable to the Company in the current or future periods. A description of standards and 
interpretations that will be adopted by the Company in future periods can be found in Note 4 of the 
annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014. 
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4. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 
 

 
 
($000s) 

June 30,  
2015 

December 31, 
2014 

   

Balance, beginning of year 5,635 10,758 
 Additions 157 27 
 Transfers to property and equipment (1,037) (5,150) 
   Disposals (3,236) - 

Balance, end of period 1,519 5,635 

 

 
5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

 
 
($000s) 

June 30,  
2015 

December 31, 
2014 

   

Property and equipment cost 2,851,356 2,808,959 
Accumulated depletion, depreciation and impairments (1,296,334) (1,181,909) 

Net book value 1,555,022 1,627,050 

 
 
Property and Equipment Cost 
 
 
($000s) 

June 30,  
2015 

December 31, 
2014 

   

Balance, beginning of year 2,808,959 1,769,893 
 Additions 55,722 311,488 
 Acquisitions, including decommissioning costs 1,147 753,297 

Transfers from exploration and evaluation assets 1,037 5,150 
 Transfers to assets held for sale - (6,000) 

Change in decommissioning liabilities estimate (note 6) - 52,022 
 Disposals (15,509) (76,891) 

Balance, end of period 2,851,356 2,808,959 

 

 
Accumulated Depletion, Depreciation and Impairments  
 
 
($000s) 

June 30,  
2015 

December 31, 
2014 

   

Balance, beginning of year (1,181,909) (585,542) 
 Depletion and depreciation expense (118,687) (234,829) 
 Disposals 4,262 38,462 
 Impairments - (400,000) 

Balance, end of period (1,296,334) (1,181,909) 
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Proceeds of $12.1 million were received for the disposition of a pipeline and minor producing 
properties during the first six months of 2015 (June 30, 2014 - $28.3 million). The pipeline had been 
held for sale at December 31, 2014, with $6.0 million included in deposits and prepaids on the 
statement of financial position. The pipeline was sold in April 2015 for proceeds of $8.1 million. During 
the first six months of 2015, a loss on the disposal of the minor properties of $4.7 million was 
recognized (June 30, 2014 - $9.7 million gain).  
 
At June 30, 2015, undeveloped land of $24.2 million was excluded from costs subject to depletion 
(June 30, 2014 - $28.4 million). In addition, future development costs of $1.3 billion were added into 
costs subject to depletion (June 30, 2014 - $1.0 billion).  
 
On May 30, 2014, the Company closed the acquisition of assets in the Deep Basin area of Alberta 
focused on development of the Cardium for $228.8 million. A $120.0 million bought deal equity 
financing was closed in conjunction with the acquisition (see Note 9). Details of the transaction are as 
follows: 
 

($000s)   
   

Property and equipment        258,079 
Decommissioning liabilities   (29,312) 

Fair value of net assets        228,767 

   
Cash consideration paid         228,767 

 
On August 6, 2014 the Company acquired $406.7 million of additional Cardium assets through the 
acquisition of Crocotta Energy Inc. (“Crocotta”). 
 
 

6. DECOMMISSIONING LIABILITIES 
 

 
 
($000s) 

June 30,  
2015 

December 31, 
2014 

   

Balance, beginning of year 411,209 254,413 
 Accretion expense 4,639 9,286 
 Liabilities acquired - 113,681 
 Liabilities incurred 1,075 6,306 
 Disposal of liabilities (3,675) (13,090) 
 Settlement of liabilities (2,981) (11,409) 
 Change in estimates - 52,022 

Balance, end of period 410,267 411,209 

 
The Company’s decommissioning liabilities result from net ownership interests in petroleum and 
natural gas assets including well sites, gathering systems and processing facilities. At June 30, 2015, 
the Company estimated the total undiscounted amount of cash flows required to settle its 
decommissioning liabilities was approximately $556.0 million, which will be incurred over the next 40 
years (December 31, 2014 - $560.0 million). At June 30, 2015, the Company used a risk free rate of 
2.25% and an inflation rate of 2.0% to calculate the present value of the decommissioning liabilities 
(December 31, 2014 - risk free rate of 2.25% and inflation rate of 2.0%). The change in estimates 
during 2014 was primarily attributable to the change in the period end risk-free rate. 
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7. AVAILABLE CREDIT FACILITIES 
 
On May 29, 2015, the Company completed the semi-annual review of its credit facilities with its 
banking syndicate. Credit facilities were maintained at $695.0 million. The amended credit facilities 
consist of a $410.0 million revolving syndicated facility, a $40.0 million revolving operating facility and 
a $245.0 million non-revolving syndicated facility. Bank fees related to the amended credit facilities 
totalled $2.9 million. At June 30, 2015, $625.9 million was drawn against the credit facilities 
(December 31, 2014 - $611.7 million). 
 
The revolving syndicated facility and the revolving operating facility, which comprise the Company’s 
borrowing base facilities, are reviewed semi-annually and terminate on May 31, 2017 unless 
extended. The non-revolving syndicated facility is due on May 29, 2016 and has been classified as a 
current liability. Prior to May 29, 2016, proceeds received on the sale of assets in excess of $30.0 
million in aggregate are required to be applied against the non-revolving syndicated facility. 
 
Under the borrowing base facilities, total borrowings cannot exceed the borrowing base, which is 
determined by the lenders on a semi-annual basis, or upon the occurrence of a material event. The 
level of the borrowing base is determined by the lenders based upon their review of, among other 
things, the Company’s reserves and the value thereof, utilizing commodity prices determined by the 
lenders which may be different than those utilized by the Company’s independent reserve evaluator. 
The next borrowing base review will occur prior to November 30, 2015.  
 
Security for the credit facilities at June 30, 2015 included a demand debenture for $1.5 billion which 
provides for a first ranking security interest and floating charge over all of the assets and property of 
the Company. 
 
The credit facilities bear interest at the prime rate or Libor rate, plus a margin, and in respect of 
banker’s acceptances requires the payment of a stamping fee equal to a margin. The margins 
applicable to the borrowing base facilities range from 1.00% per annum to 4.50% per annum, based 
upon the ratio of the Company’s debt to earnings before interest, taxes, exploration expenses, and all 
non-cash items including depletion and depreciation, unrealized gain/loss on derivatives, gain/loss on 
sale of assets, accretion and share based compensation (“Bank EBITDA”). Interest and fees payable 
on the non-revolving syndicated facility are based upon the borrowing base facility margins plus 
3.50%. For the six months ended June 30, 2015, the effective interest rate, including standby and 
other fees, was 4.7% (June 30, 2014 – 4.4%).  
 
At June 30, 2015, the Company was in compliance with all covenants, obligations and conditions of 
its credit agreement. The covenants under the credit facilities include covenants which relate to senior 
debt and total debt to Bank EBITDA, interest coverage, permitted distributions, permitted dispositions 
and permitted hedging. 
 
At June 30, 2015, the Company had letters of credit outstanding totalling $6.1 million (December 31, 
2014 – $4.5 million). 
 
 

8. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES 
 
On January 28, 2014, the Company issued $75.0 million face value of convertible unsecured 
subordinated debentures at par. The debentures bear an annual interest rate of 6.40%, payable semi-
annually in arrears. Prior to maturity on January 31, 2019, the debentures are convertible into 
Common Shares of the Company at a conversion price of $7.40 per Common Share, subject to 
adjustment in certain events.  
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9. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
 
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares, Common Non-Voting 
Shares, Non-Voting Convertible Shares and First Preferred Shares without nominal or par value. 

 
 
Common Shares 

 
 June 30, 2015 December 31, 2014 

 
(000s) 

Number of 
shares 

Amount 
$ 

Number of 
shares 

Amount 
$ 

     

Balance, beginning of year 193,498 1,006,799 110,143 551,403 
Issuance of common shares - - 23,530 120,003 
Issuance of common shares upon business 

combination - - 43,829 231,419 
Issued on conversion of Non-Voting 

Convertible Shares - - 15,513 106,263 
Issued on exercise of stock options - - 483 2,159 
Share issue costs, net of deferred tax of 

$1.7 million - - - (5,105) 
Transfer from contributed surplus on 

exercise of stock options - - - 657 

Balance, end of period 193,498 1,006,799 193,498 1,006,799 

 
On April 30, 2014, the Company closed an equity issuance of 23.5 million Subscription Receipts at 
$5.10 per Subscription Receipt for gross proceeds of $120 million. On May 30, 2014, in conjunction 
with the closing of the acquisition of Deep Basin properties, holders of the Subscription Receipts 
received one Common Share of the Company for each Subscription Receipt held. 
 
On May 28, 2014, all of the Company’s outstanding Non-Voting Convertible Shares were converted 
to Common Shares of the Company. 
 
On August 6, 2014, the Company issued 43.8 million Common Shares at $5.28 per share in 
connection with the acquisition of Crocotta. 
 
 
Dividends 
 
Dividends declared are subject to approval by the Board of Directors on a monthly basis. In February 
2015, the monthly dividend was suspended by the Board of Directors. During the six months ended 
June 30, 2015, $3.4 million in dividends had been declared and paid (June 30, 2014 - $27.1 million in 
dividends declared, of which $21.9 million had been paid).  

 
 
Contributed Surplus 
 

 
($000s) 

June 30,  
2015 

December 31, 
2014 

   

Balance, beginning of year 26,160 23,377 
Share-based compensation cost 2,492 3,440 
Transfer to share capital on exercise of options - (657) 

Balance, end of period 28,652 26,160 
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Share Option Plan 
 

 

 June 30, 2015  December 31, 2014 

 

Number of 
Options 

(000s) 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price ($) 

Number of  
Options 

(000s) 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price ($)  

     

Outstanding, beginning of year 8,879 4.50 10,266 4.50 
Forfeited (611) 4.49 (904)              4.52 
Exercised - - (483)              4.47 

Outstanding, end of period 8,268 4.50 8,879 4.50 

 
At June 30, 2015, option exercise prices ranged from $4.03 to $5.30 per option for the 8.3 million 
options outstanding. The weighted average exercise price was $4.50 per option and the weighted 
average remaining life of the options was 2.6 years. At June 30, 2015, there were 5.2 million options 
exercisable, with a weighted average exercise price of $4.49 per option. The Company has not 
issued options since December 31, 2013. 
 
For the six months ended June 30, 2015, $0.5 million was recognized as share-based compensation 
(June 30, 2014 - $1.8 million), of which $0.4 million was expensed (June 30, 2014 - $1.2 million). 
 
 

Restricted and Performance Award Incentive Plan 
 

Number of Restricted Awards (000s) 
June 30,   

2015 
December 31, 

2014 
   

Outstanding, beginning of year - - 
Granted 5,196 - 
Forfeited (312) - 

Outstanding, end of period 4,884 - 

 
Under the Restricted and Performance Award Incentive Plan, grantees will receive either cash or 
Common Shares, at the discretion of the Company, in relation to the value of a specified number of 
underlying Common Shares. The Company intends to settle the awards with equity. The awards vest 
equally over three years, on the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date. The maximum 
number of Common Shares issuable is limited to 5% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares. 
During 2015, a total of 5.2 million restricted awards were granted. Each restricted award entitles the 
holder to a Common Share or the value of a Common Share (subject to certain adjustments, 
including for dividends paid on the Common Shares) on the vesting date.  
 
At June 30, 2015, there were 4.9 million restricted share awards outstanding with a weighted average 
remaining life of 2.5 years. At June 30, 2015, none of the restricted share awards were exercisable. 
 
The grant date fair values of share-based compensation awards are recognized over the vesting 
periods of the awards, with an offsetting credit to contributed surplus. The estimated forfeiture rate is 
adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards that vest. The related share-based compensation 
expense previously included in contributed surplus is credited to share capital on the exercise of the 
stock awards. 
 
The fair value of awards under the Company’s incentive plan is determined using a Black-Scholes 
pricing model. The following assumptions were made during the period ended June 30, 2015: risk-
free interest rate of 1.0 - 1.4%; dividend yield of 1.2%; volatility factor of the market price of the 
Company’s Common Shares of 43 - 54%; and expected award lives of one to three years. Restricted 
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share awards granted during the period ended June 30, 2015 had an average fair value of $1.45 per 
award. 
 
For the six months ended June 30, 2015, $2.0 million was recognized as share-based compensation 
(June 30, 2014 - nil), of which $1.4 million was expensed (June 30, 2014 - nil). 
 
 
Earnings (Loss) Per Share 
 

 
Three months ended 

June 30 
Six months ended 

June 30 

   2015 2014   2015 2014 
   

  

Net earnings (loss) ($000s) (50,136) 20,842 (72,954) 27,613 

     
Weighted average number of shares (000s)     

Shares outstanding, beginning of period 193,498 125,865 193,498 125,656 
Share options exercised - 152 - 219 
Equity issuance of Common Shares - 8,274 - 4,160 

Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 193,498 134,291 193,498 130,035 

     
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 193,498 135,437 193,498 130,916 

Basic earnings (loss) per share (0.26) 0.16 (0.38) 0.21 

Diluted earnings (loss) per share (0.26) 0.15 (0.38) 0.21 

 
 
The diluted weighted average number of shares is calculated by assuming the proceeds that arise 
from the exercise of outstanding and in the money options are used to purchase Common Shares of 
the Company at the average market price during the period. As the Company incurred a net loss for 
the six months ended June 30, 2015, all options, all restricted awards and the effect of the conversion 
of convertible debentures were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per share 

(June 30, 2014 – 0.5 million options).  
 
 

10. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT  
 

The Company's primary capital management objective is to strengthen our financial position and 
financial flexibility. To manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust capital spending, 
dispose of properties, adjust dividends declared, issue new shares, issue new debt or repay existing 
debt. 
 
In managing its capital structure, the Company monitors financial metrics as indicators of overall 
financial strength. The financial metrics the Company currently monitors include net debt to funds flow 
from operations and debt to debt plus equity.  
 
The Company's objective is to target net debt to funds flow from operations at or below a ratio of 1.5 
and debt to debt plus equity at a ratio at or below 0.4. While the Company may exceed these rates 
from time to time, efforts are made after a period of variation to bring the measures back in line. The 
net debt to funds flow from operations at June 30, 2015 was calculated based on second quarter 
funds flow annualized. The resulting net debt to funds flow from operations of 3.9 times reflects the 
lower commodity prices experienced in the second quarter. At June 30, 2015, the Company had a 
debt to debt plus equity ratio of 0.52 times. During 2015, the Company plans to repay $100.0 million 
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of its debt to improve its financial position. The repayment is expected to be primarily funded through 
asset dispositions and funds flow from operations exceeding capital expenditures. 

 
Net Debt to Funds Flow from Operations  
 
 
($000s, except ratios) 

June 30,  
2015 

December 31,  
2014 

   

   
Net Debt   
 Bank loan 625,943 611,717 
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 75,558 132,439 
 Accounts receivable (47,818) (65,135) 
 Deposits and prepaid expenses (19,437) (14,423) 
   Convertible debentures - face value 75,000 75,000 

Net Debt  709,246 739,598 

   
Funds Flow from Operations - Quarter Ended   
 Petroleum and natural gas revenue 93,436 133,354 
 Royalties (6,400) (14,835) 
 Gain on financial derivatives - realized 16,432 14,145 
 Operating expense (36,207) (42,684) 
 Transportation expense (4,784) (5,891) 
 General and administration  (7,929) (7,793) 
 Interest (8,624) (8,038) 

Exploration expense - (86) 
 Capital and other taxes - 6 

 Funds Flow from Operations - Quarter Ended 45,924 68,178 
   

Funds Flow from Operations - Annualized (Quarterly x 4) 183,696 272,712 
   

Net Debt to Funds Flow from Operations (target <= 1.5) 3.9 2.7 

   
 
Debt to Debt plus Equity 
 
 
($000s, except ratios) 

June 30,  
2015 

December 31, 
2014 

   

   
Debt   
 Bank loan 625,943 611,717 

   Convertible debentures - face value 75,000 75,000 

   Debt 700,943 686,717 

   
Debt plus Equity   
 Debt 700,943 686,717 
 Shareholders’ equity  641,927 715,775 

 Debt plus Equity 1,342,870 1,402,492 

Debt to Debt plus Equity (target <= 0.4) 0.52 0.49 
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11. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE 

 
Three months ended 

June 30 
Six months ended   

June 30 

($000s)  2015  2014  2015  2014 
     

Salary and employee 8,053 8,456 14,784 19,654 
Other 4,480 5,948 8,593 9,113 

Gross expenses 12,533 14,404 23,377 28,767 
Capitalized costs (2,932) (4,128) (5,862) (8,639) 
Operating recoveries (1,672) (1,142) (3,180) (2,265) 

General and administration 7,929 9,134 14,335 17,863 

 
During the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, general and administrative expenses included 
$2.0 million of transaction costs primarily related to the Deep Basin acquisition. 
 
 

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
A director of the Company and the corporate secretary are partners of the Company's legal counsel, 
Burnet, Duckworth & Palmer LLP ("BDP"). For the six months ended June 30, 2015, general and 
administrative expense included amounts totalling $0.2 million charged to the Company by BDP 
(June 30, 2014 - $0.6 million). As at June 30, 2015, a payable of $0.1 million was owing to BDP 
(December 31, 2014 - $0.1 million). 
 
 

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities  
 
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received upon selling an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
 
The Company’s financial instruments recognized in the statement of financial position consist of 
accounts receivable, accounts payable, bank loan, convertible debentures and financial derivatives. 
The carrying values of accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their fair values due to 
their short-term nature. The carrying value of the bank loan approximates fair value due to the floating 
interest rate on the facilities. At June 30, 2015, the fair value of the convertible debentures was $50.3 
million, based on Level 1 inputs as the debentures are traded in an active market. 

 
 
Financial Derivative Contracts 

 
The Company enters into financial derivative contracts for the purpose of protecting cash flows 
generated from operations from the volatility of commodity prices and changes in interest and 
electricity rates.  
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The Company had the following commodity financial contracts in place as at June 30, 2015: 
 
 Volume Pricing 

 
  

Crude Oil 
  

   

Costless Collars   
July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015 2,500 Bbl/d WTI US $95.00 - $97.50/Bbl 
   
Fixed Price   
July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015 1,500 Bbl/d WTI CDN $74.50/Bbl 
January 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016 500 Bbl/d WTI CDN $77.55/Bbl 
January 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016 500 Bbl/d WTI CDN $77.50/Bbl 
   
Calls   
July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015 500 Bbl/d WTI US $85.00/Bbl 

   

Natural Gas   
   

Costless Collars   
July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015 20,000 GJ/d CDN $3.50 - $4.00/GJ 
July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015  11,000 GJ/d CDN $3.50 - $4.35/GJ 
July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015 5,000 GJ/d CDN $4.00 - $4.51/GJ 
July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015 5,000 GJ/d CDN $4.00 - $4.50/GJ 
   
Fixed Price   
July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015 20,000 GJ/d CDN $2.80/GJ 
July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015 5,000 GJ/d CDN $2.72/GJ 
January 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016 30,000 GJ/d CDN $3.00/GJ 
January 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016 10,000 GJ/d CDN $3.05/GJ 

   
Electricity   
 

July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2016 3.0 MW/h CDN $49.50 MW/h 
 
 

 
 
Financial Derivative Contracts Financial Statement Recognition 
 
The Company recognizes the fair value of its financial derivative contracts on the statement of 
financial position each reporting period, with the change in fair value recognized as an unrealized 
gain or loss on the statement of earnings.  
 
The fair values of the Company’s financial derivatives were determined using an income valuation 
approach based upon Level 3 inputs. The valuations, which were provided by the counterparties with 
whom the transactions were completed, were reviewed by the Company for reasonableness, giving 
consideration to factors such as the commodity forward price strips and historical volatilities. There 
have been no transfers between the hierarchy levels during the period.  
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($000s) 

June 30,  
2015 

December 31, 
2014 

   
   

Assets - Fair value of financial derivatives   
Current 29,583 65,438 
Long-term 848 - 

 30,431 65,438 
   

Liabilities - Fair value of financial derivatives   
 Current 336 336 
 Long-term 140 85 

 476 421 

Net Asset 29,955 65,017 

 
Of the total June 30, 2015 financial liability, $0.3 million relates to 2015 and $0.2 million relates to 
2016. 
 
 
($000s) Crude Oil Natural Gas Other Total 
     

Six months ended June 30, 2015     
Realized (gain) loss on financial derivatives (33,777) (8,582) 82 (42,277) 
New contracts 188 2,817 - 3,005 
Change in value 3,413 698 99 4,210 

Unrealized gain (loss) on financial derivatives (30,176) (5,067) 181 (35,062) 
     

December 31, 2014 - Net Asset (Liability) 49,844 15,427 (254) 65,017 

June 30, 2015 - Net Asset (Liability) 19,668 10,360 (73) 29,955 

     
     
Six months ended June 30, 2014     

Realized loss on financial derivatives 12,810 4,643 126 17,579 
New contracts (358) (3,066) - (3,424) 
Change in value (19,034) (4,986) 54 (23,966) 

Unrealized gain (loss) on financial derivatives (6,582) (3,409) 180 (9,811) 
     

December 31, 2013 - Net Liability (17,103) (450) (218) (17,771) 

June 30, 2014 - Net Liability (23,685) (3,859) (38) (27,582) 

 
 

Market risk 
 

Market risk includes uncertainty arising from possible movements in commodity prices and interest 
rates and the impact of such movements on the future performance of the business. Commodity price 
and interest rate movements could adversely affect the value of the Company’s financial assets, 
liabilities and expected future cash flows.  
 
To partially mitigate exposure to commodity price risk, the Company enters into various financial 
derivative instruments. The instruments currently outstanding are described above. To mitigate 
exposure to interest rate risk, the Company carries debt at both fixed and floating interest rates. The 
Company may also manage interest rate risk through the use of interest rate swaps. The Company’s 
bank debt facilities have a floating interest rate that fluctuates based on prevailing market conditions.  

 
When assessing the potential impact of price changes on financial derivative contracts outstanding at 
June 30, 2015, it is estimated that a $1.00/Bbl change in the price of oil would change the unrealized 
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loss by approximately $1.3 million. A $0.10/GJ change in the price of natural gas would change the 
unrealized loss by approximately $2.8 million. Based on the bank debt outstanding as at June 30, 
2015, a one percent change in the interest rate would impact interest expense for a six month period 
by approximately $3.1 million. The Company’s convertible debentures bear interest at a fixed annual 
interest rate of 6.4%. 
 
 
Credit risk 

 

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will fail to perform an obligation or fail to pay 
amounts due, causing a financial loss. The Company’s accounts receivable are with customers and 
partners in the oil and natural gas industry and are subject to normal credit risks. A portion of the 
Company’s production is currently sold through partners under normal industry sale and payment 
terms.  
 
During the six months ended June 30, 2015, four third party purchasers each marketed more than 
10% of the Company’s petroleum and natural gas revenue. At June 30, 2015, approximately 34% of 
the accounts receivable balance is due from three customers.  
 

 
Accounts Receivable ($000s) 

June 30,  
2015 

December 31, 
2014 

   

Less than 90 days 42,710 58,019 
Greater than 90 days 5,108 7,116 

Total 47,818 65,135 

 
Counterparties to the Company’s financial derivative contracts are major Canadian financial 
institutions, having investment grade credit ratings. 
 
 
Liquidity risk 
 

Liquidity risk arises through excess financial obligations due over available financial assets at any 
point in time. The Company’s objective in managing liquidity risk is to maintain sufficient capital in 
order to meet its current and future liquidity requirements. The Company believes that it has access 
to sufficient capital through internally generated cash flows, external debt and equity sources, and 
credit facilities to meet current spending forecasts.  
 
At June 30, 2015, $625.9 million was drawn against the Company’s credit facilities, with $62.9 million 
of borrowing capacity available. During 2015, the Company plans to repay $100.0 million of its bank 
debt to improve its financial position. The repayment is expected to be primarily funded through 
disposition proceeds and funds flow from operations exceeding capital expenditures. The Company 
plans to repay the remaining $145.0 million of debt on the non-revolving syndicated facility due May 
29, 2016 through further strategic or financial means, which may include additional asset dispositions 
and alternative debt refinancing. 
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14. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
 

Net Change in Non-Cash Working Capital 

 
Three months ended 

June 30 
Six months ended   

June 30 

($000s) 2015 2014 2015 2014 
 

    

Source (use) of cash:     

 Accounts receivable 3,797 (5,261) 17,317 (17,579) 

 Deposits and prepaid expenses (11,308) (6,038) (11,014) (4,228) 

 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (39,050) (13,923) (56,881) 17,790 

 (46,561) (25,222) (50,578) (4,017) 

     

Related to:     

Operating activities (7,975) (5,452) 3,516 (14,375) 

Investing activities (35,886) (20,790) (44,622) 5,122 

Financing activities (2,700) 1,020 (9,472) 5,236 

 (46,561) (25,222) (50,578) (4,017) 

 
 

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Commitments  

 

($000s) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter 
        

Total 
        

Operating leases 2,253 4,329 6,041 7,753 7,482 50,604 78,462 

Processing 2,113 6,024 6,024 6,024 6,024 31,941 58,150 

Transportation  5,827 14,723 13,242 9,562 4,610 9,495 57,459 

Fractionation  1,462 2,843 2,653 650 - - 7,608 

Capital  6,504 9,969 7,501 308 - - 24,282 

Total 18,159 37,888 35,461 24,297 18,116 92,040 225,961 

 
At June 30, 2015, the Company is committed under operating leases for office space, contracts 
related to the processing of natural gas, transportation of oil, natural gas and NGLs, fractionation of 
natural gas liquids, and capital commitments for drilling rig services.  

 
Litigation  

 
The Company is involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the normal course of business. 
Long Run does not expect that the outcome of these proceedings will have a material adverse effect 
on the Company. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 

 
This Management’s Discussion & Analysis (“MD&A”) of the financial condition and results of operations of Long Run 
Exploration Ltd. (“Long Run”, the “Company”, “its” or “our”) should be read in conjunction with the unaudited interim 
financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2015 and the audited financial statements and MD&A for the year 
ended December 31, 2014. The disclosure which is unchanged from the MD&A for the year ended December 31, 2014 
may not be repeated herein. 

The Company follows International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Amounts shown in the MD&A are in 
Canadian dollars unless otherwise stated. All production volumes disclosed herein are sales volumes. Certain prior year 
amounts have been reclassified to reflect the current year classification of capital expenditures and production volumes 
by area. 

The MD&A contains certain measures that do not have any standardized meaning as prescribed by IFRS and therefore 
are considered non-Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“Non-GAAP”) measures. Readers are cautioned that the 
MD&A should be read in conjunction with the disclosure in the Non-GAAP Measures and the Advisory sections located 
at the end of this document. The Advisory provides information on forward-looking statements and oil and natural gas 
information. 

See the Abbreviations section at the end of this document for abbreviations used throughout. 

 
This document is dated July 29, 2015.  

Long Run’s Strategy 

Long Run Exploration Ltd. is an intermediate oil and natural gas company focused on development, 
exploration and production in the Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin. We complement our development 
programs with strategic acquisitions and dispositions. Targeting a production mix balanced between oil and 
natural gas, activities are concentrated in our core areas, which include the Peace River Montney, the Deep 
Basin Cardium, the Redwater Viking and the Boyer Bluesky. 

Long Run has assembled a large land position and is continuing to add oil and natural gas infrastructure in 
our key areas, providing flexibility for future growth and development. Through controlled exploitation, 
enhanced recovery and selective low risk exploration, Long Run strives to maximize operating and cost 
efficiencies.  

Long Run continues to examine strategic and financial means to improve the capital structure of the 
Company. With a strong asset base and drilling opportunities, Long Run believes that strengthening the 
balance sheet is the first step in being able to further advance properties and drive longer term growth for 
the Company. We are focused on disciplined capital management, portfolio rationalization and cost saving 
measures to help improve our financial flexibility in the near term. In response to the depressed commodity 
price environment, we have adopted a fiscally prudent and conservative current year plan to preserve long 
term value for our shareholders. Our capital program targets high-grade development projects in our core 
operating areas.  

Our focus for 2015 remains on strengthening our balance sheet through a reduced capital program and 
selective asset dispositions. We continue to anticipate $100 million in capital spending for 2015. Our 2015 
capital program is expected to be fully funded by our estimated annual funds flow from operations of 
between $120 - $135 million. We expect that additional cash flows generated from commodity price 
improvements, our cost savings initiatives and disposition proceeds will be used to reduce outstanding debt. 
We are currently targeting debt reduction of $100 million in 2015. The Company plans to repay an 
additional $145 million of bank debt due by May 29, 2016 through asset dispositions and/or alternative debt 
refinancing.  
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Highlights 
  

Second quarter 2015 compared to second quarter 2014 

 Generated funds flow from operations of $45.9 million ($0.24/share), a decrease of $27.5 million 
compared to $73.4 million ($0.54/share) in 2014, reflecting lower commodity prices and lower oil 
production partially offset by higher natural gas and NGLs production, a gain on financial 
derivatives and lower royalties.   

 Averaged 34,457 Boe/d of production, an increase of 6,855 Boe/d from 27,602 Boe/d in 2014. The 
production increase resulted primarily from the liquids-rich natural gas weighted Deep Basin 
acquisitions in 2014. 

 Reduced capital expenditures to $8.8 million compared to $57.3 million in 2014. 

 Executed non-core dispositions totaling $10.1 million, with proceeds being directed towards debt 
repayment. 

 Oil prices including derivatives averaged $72.03/Bbl compared to $89.59/Bbl in 2014 as a result of 
a decrease in the West Texas Intermediate benchmark pricing, partially offset by an increase in the 
U.S. dollar exchange rate and a realized gain on oil financial derivatives.  

Average NGLs pricing for the quarter decreased to $24.48/Bbl from $72.76/Bbl in 2014, reflecting 
lower market prices as well as the change in our NGLs product mix due to the Deep Basin 
acquisitions in 2014.  

Natural gas prices including derivatives averaged $3.30/Mcf compared to $4.61/Mcf in 2014, 
primarily attributable to weaker AECO benchmark prices partially offset by a realized gain on 
natural gas financial derivatives. 

 Recorded a net loss of $50.1 million compared to net earnings of $20.8 million in 2014, primarily as 
a result of lower funds flow from operations and higher unrealized losses on financial derivatives.  

 Completed the semi-annual review of the Company’s credit facilities with our bank syndicate on 
May 29, 2015. Total credit facilities were maintained at $695 million. The amended credit facilities 
consist of a $410 million revolving syndicated facility, a $40 million revolving operating facility and a 
$245 million non-revolving syndicated facility. 
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Six months ended June 30, 2105 compared to six months ended June 30, 2014  

 Reduced net debt by $30.4 million, on track with our debt reduction goal of $100 million for 2015. 
The reduction in net debt was a result of disposition proceeds and funds flow from operations 
exceeding capital expenditures. 

 Generated funds flow from operations of $85.9 million ($0.44/share) compared to $143.5 million 
($1.10/share) in 2014, reflecting lower commodity prices and lower oil production partially offset by 
higher natural gas and NGLs production, a gain on financial derivatives and lower royalties.  

 Averaged 35,026 Boe/d of production, an increase of 8,413 Boe/d from 26,613 Boe/d in 2014. The 
production increase resulted from the liquids-rich natural gas weighted Deep Basin acquisitions in 
2014. Production for 2015 remains on track to meet annual guidance of 32,000 - 33,000 Boe/d 
based on planned capital expenditures of $100 million. 

 Executed a focused development program, drilling 9.0 successful net wells. Capital expenditures of 
$54.1 million compared to $158.2 million in 2014 and were in line with our planned capital 
expenditures of $50 - $55 million. Capital spending in 2015 was concentrated on our Peace River 
Montney and Deep Basin Cardium core areas. In 2014, capital spending was focused on Peace 
River Montney and Redwater Viking.  

 Successfully executed non-core dispositions for total proceeds of $12.1 million.  

 Oil prices including derivatives decreased to $68.52/Bbl from $87.73/Bbl in 2014. A decrease in the 
West Texas Intermediate benchmark pricing was partially offset by an increase in the U.S. dollar 
exchange rate and a realized gain on oil financial derivatives.  

Average NGLs pricing decreased to $23.44/Bbl from $78.89/Bbl in 2014, reflecting lower market 
prices as well as the change in our NGLs product mix due to the Deep Basin acquisitions in 2014. 

Natural gas prices including derivatives decreased to $3.23/Mcf from $5.03/Mcf in 2014, primarily 
attributable to weaker AECO benchmark prices, partially offset by a realized gain on natural gas 
financial derivatives.  

 Recorded a net loss of $73.0 million compared to net earnings of $27.6 million in 2014, primarily as 
a result of lower funds flow from operations, higher unrealized losses on financial derivatives and 
increased depletion expense associated with higher production volumes.  
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Quarterly Results Overview 
                                                  
 

1
 See Non-GAAP Measures section 

2 
Excludes $228.8 million paid for the Deep Basin acquisition on May 30, 2014 

  

 
Six months ended 

June 30 
 

2015 
 

2014 

($000s, except per share or 
unless otherwise noted) 2015 2014 

 
Q2 Q1 

 
Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 

           

Funds flow from operations 
1
 85,882 143,479  45,924 39,958  68,178 80,199 73,429 70,050 

   Per share, basic 
1
 0.44 1.10  0.24 0.21  0.35 0.45 0.55 0.56 

   Per share, diluted 
1
 0.44 1.10  0.24 0.21  0.35 0.45 0.54 0.56 

           

Net earnings (loss) (72,954) 27,613  (50,136) (22,818)  (258,652) 40,644 20,842 6,771 

   Per share, basic  (0.38) 0.21  (0.26) (0.12)  (1.34) 0.23 0.16 0.05 

   Per share, diluted (0.38) 0.21  (0.26) (0.12)  (1.34) 0.23 0.15 0.05 

           

Revenues, before royalties 174,760 310,564  93,436 81,324  133,354 166,978 158,678 151,886 

           

Capital expenditures 54,085 158,179  8,770 45,315  70,094 75,759 57,330 100,848 

Net divestitures 
2
 (10,922) (18,730)  (9,530) (1,392)  (1,797) (8,147) (15,051) (3,679) 

Net capital expenditures 
2
 43,163 139,448  (760) 43,923  68,297 67,612 42,279 97,169 

           

Production            

   Oil (Bbl/d) 9,990 12,580  9,429 10,557  12,130 13,071 12,476 12,684 

   Natural gas liquids (Bbl/d) 4,933 1,812  4,659 5,210  5,609 3,031 2,038 1,584 

   Total Liquids (Bbl/d) 14,923 14,392  14,088 15,767  17,739 16,102 14,514 14,268 

   Natural gas (Mcf/d) 120,620 73,327  122,214 119,007  112,576 112,161 78,524 68,071 

Total (Boe/d) 35,026 26,613  34,457 35,602  36,502 34,795 27,602 25,613 

           

Prices, including derivatives           

   Oil ($/Bbl) 68.52 87.73  72.03 65.34  79.35 84.66 89.59 85.89 

   Natural gas liquids ($/Bbl) 23.44 78.89  24.48 22.50  30.02 57.98 72.76 86.87 

   Total Liquids ($/Bbl) 53.61 86.62  56.31 51.18  63.75 79.64 87.23 85.99 

   Natural gas ($/Mcf) 3.23 5.03  3.30 3.17  4.15 4.23 4.61 5.53 

   Total ($/Boe) 34.24 60.82  35.04 33.45  43.92 50.75 59.13 62.67 

           

Operating netback ($/Boe) 18.41 35.76  19.92 16.94  25.04 31.41 35.04 36.55 
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Significant Properties 

Long Run’s key development areas within our property portfolio include the Peace River Montney, the Deep 
Basin and the Redwater Viking. The Peace River Montney is focused on Montney light oil development at 
Normandville and Girouxville. The Deep Basin property was acquired by Long Run through two strategic 
acquisitions completed in May and August 2014. The Deep Basin area, including the Edson and 
Kakwa/Elmworth properties, is focused on light oil and liquids rich natural gas development from the 
Cardium and Bluesky formations. The Redwater Viking property, located near Edmonton, Alberta, is 
focused on light oil development from the Viking formation. The Company also owns a significant low 
decline shallow gas property at Boyer in northern Alberta.  
 
During the second quarter of 2015, Long Run invested $3.3 million into the Peace River Montney area, 
drilling no wells during the quarter. Second quarter 2015 production averaged 8,767 Boe/d, consisting of 
4,809 Bbl/d of oil and NGLs and 23,749 MMcf/d of natural gas. In the first six months of 2015, Long Run 
invested $17.7 million, drilling 5.0 net Montney wells with a 100% success rate, resulting in average 
production of 9,145 Boe/d (56% oil and NGLs). Capital expenditures for 2015 are expected to total 
approximately $24 million for this area. No further wells are planned for the remainder of the year in the 
area. The Company operates, transports, and processes all of its production within the Peace River area. 
 
Long Run invested $2.9 million in the Deep Basin - Edson area in the second quarter of 2015, drilling no 
new wells. Second quarter 2015 production averaged 7,366 Boe/d, consisting of 3,023 Bbl/d of oil and 
NGLs and 26,058 Mcf/d of natural gas. In the first six months of 2015, Long Run invested $16.7 million, 
drilling 3.0 net wells with a 100% success rate, resulting in average production of 7,432 Boe/d (42% oil and 
NGLs). Capital expenditures for 2015 are expected to total approximately $29 million for this area, including 
the drilling of approximately 6.0 net wells.  
 
In the Deep Basin - Kakwa/Elmworth area, Long Run invested $0.4 million in the second quarter of 2015, 
with no new wells drilled. Second quarter 2015 production averaged 5,706 Boe/d, consisting of 1,078 Bbl/d 
of oil and NGLs and 27,765 Mcf/d of natural gas. In the first six months of 2015, Long Run invested $12.5 
million, drilling 1.0 net wells with a 100% success rate, resulting in average production of 5,325 Boe/d (21% 
oil and NGLs). Capital expenditures for 2015 are expected to total approximately $13 million for this area. 
No further wells are planned for the remainder of 2015. 
 
In the Redwater Viking, Long Run invested $1.7 million in the second quarter of 2015, drilling no wells. 
Second quarter production averaged 3,295 Boe/d, consisting of 2,860 Bbl/d of oil and NGLs and 2,608 
Mcf/d of natural gas. In the first six months of 2015, Long Run invested $3.4 million, with production 
averaging 3,520 Boe/d (87% oil and NGLs). Capital expenditures for 2015 are expected to total 
approximately $19 million for this area, with 12.0 net wells planned for the area in the second half of 2015. 
The Company operates, transports, and processes substantially all of its production within the Redwater 
area. 
 
For the second half of 2015, Long Run had previously planned to drill 3.0 Edson Cardium wells and 4.0 
Kakwa/Elmworth Cardium wells. After reviewing expected cost structures and factoring in forecast 
commodity prices, we have reallocated capital spending from Kakwa/Elmworth to the Redwater Viking area. 
As a result, we plan to drill 12.0 Redwater Viking wells and 3.0 Edson Cardium wells in the second half of 
2015. This reallocation is reflected in the 2015 planned capital spending described above.  
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Capital Investment 

Capital Expenditures, Acquisitions & Dispositions 

 

    Six months ended June 30 

($000s)   Q2 2015 Q2 2014  2015  2014 
       

Drilling and completion  4,484 34,851  36,061 109,965 

Plant and facilities  1,967 16,441  14,169 39,811 

Geological and geophysical  42 4,295  820 5,234 

Other assets  2,277 1,743  3,035 3,169 

Capital expenditures   8,770 57,330  54,085 158,179 

Acquisitions – land   528 3,493  589 4,694 

Acquisitions – properties  24 230,117  558 233,678 

Dispositions  (10,082) (19,894)  (12,069) (28,336) 

Net capital expenditures  (760) 271,046  43,163 368,215 

 Drilling Activity  

  Q2 2015 Wells Q2 2014 Wells Success Rate (net wells) 

  Gross Net Gross Net Q2 2015  Q2 2014 

        

Peace River – Montney - - 11.0 11.0 - 100% 

 – Other - - - - - - 

Deep Basin – Edson - - - - - - 

 – Kakwa/Elmworth - - - - - - 

Redwater – Viking - - 10.0 10.0 - 100% 

 – Other - - 1.0 1.0 - 100% 

Other  - - - - - - 

  - - 22.0 22.0 - 100% 

 

  Six months ended June 30 

  2015 Wells 2014 Wells Success Rate (net wells) 

  Gross Net Gross Net 2015  2014 

        

Peace River – Montney 5.0 5.0 29.0 28.5 100% 100% 

 – Other - - 2.0 2.0 - 100% 

Deep Basin – Edson 3.0 3.0 - - 100% - 

 – Kakwa/Elmworth 1.0 1.0 - - 100% - 

Redwater – Viking - - 37.0 37.0 - 100% 

 – Other - - 2.0 1.0 - 100% 

Other  - - 1.0 1.0 - 100% 

  9.0 9.0 71.0 69.5 100% 100% 
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Capital Expenditures 

Capital expenditures in the second quarter of 2015 were $8.8 million, including $3.3 million (38%) in the 
Peace River Montney, $2.9 million (33%) in the Deep Basin at Edson, $0.4 million (5%) in the Deep Basin 
at Kakwa/Elmworth and $1.7 million (19%) in the Redwater Viking. No new wells were drilled during the 
quarter.  
 
Capital expenditures in the second quarter of 2014 were $57.3 million, including $32.0 million (56%) in the 
Peace River Montney and $12.0 million (21%) in the Redwater Viking. The Company drilled 22.0 (22.0 net) 
wells with a 100% success rate in 2014.  
 
Capital expenditures in the first six months of 2015 were $54.1 million, including $17.7 million (33%) in the 
Peace River Montney, $16.7 million (31%) in the Deep Basin at Edson, $12.5 million (23%) in the Deep 
Basin at Kakwa/Elmworth and $3.4 million (6%) in the Redwater Viking. The Company drilled 9.0 (9.0 net) 
wells with a 100% success rate in the first half of 2015.  
 
Capital expenditures in the first six months of 2014 were $158.2 million, including $83.1 million (53%) in the 
Peace River Montney and $48.0 million (30%) in the Redwater Viking. The Company drilled 71.0 (69.5 net) 
wells with a 100% success rate in 2014.  
 

Acquisitions and Dispositions  

Net disposition proceeds of $9.5 million were received in the second quarter of 2015 and $10.9 million were 
received in the first six months of 2015. Dispositions proceeds of $10.1 million were received in the second 
quarter of 2015 relating to a pipeline sale and the disposition of minor properties producing approximately 
50 Boe/d. Proceeds from these dispositions have been directed towards debt repayment. 
 
Net acquisitions in the second quarter of 2014 were $213.7 million and for the first six months of 2014 were 
$210.0 million. Net acquisitions primarily related to the Deep Basin asset acquisition, which closed on May 
30, 2014. The acquisition included development and exploration assets located primarily in the 
Kakwa/Elmworth and Edson areas. Production from the acquisition properties averaged 6,000 Boe/d (28% 
oil and NGLs) in the month of June 2014, of which 5,200 Boe/d was located in the Deep Basin area. 
 

Enhanced Oil Recovery 

Enhanced oil recovery (“EOR”) remains a key part of the Company’s strategic development plans. Long 
Run’s first EOR project is in our Peace River Montney area where the Company has two active EOR 
expansion projects. The EOR expansion at Normandville covers 5 sections (16 horizontal producers, 8 
horizontal injection wells, 1 vertical injection well) and became operational in early December 2014. A 
similar EOR expansion began in January 2015 at Girouxville covering 1.5 sections (6 horizontal producers, 
4 horizontal injection wells). Operations at both waterflood projects are advancing according to our reservoir 
models, and we anticipate clearer indications of response within the next three to six months. Successful 
EOR implementation in the Montney area has the potential to substantially improve recoveries, reduce 
production declines and improve capital efficiencies. Full field implementation of EOR at Normandville and 
Girouxville could ultimately cover approximately 30 net sections.  
 
Redwater remains an active area for Long Run as the site of our second major EOR project. Long Run 
initiated the first Viking EOR project in the north part of the field in December of 2013. A second 
complementary EOR project, located in the south part of the trend, began injection in early December 2014. 
Together these projects cover an area of 1.125 sections and include 11 horizontal Viking producers, 6 
vertical Viking producers, and 5 horizontal injection wells. Long Run is currently injecting water for pressure 
maintenance at both projects and anticipates initial results in the next 12-18 months.  
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Production  

Average Production by Product 

   Six months ended June 30 

 Q2 2015 Q2 2014  2015 2014 

Liquids (Bbl/d)      

 Light oil  9,059 11,808  9,647 11,651 

 Heavy oil  370 668  343 929 

 NGLs 4,659 2,038  4,933 1,812 

 Total 14,088 14,514  14,923 14,392 

Natural Gas (Mcf/d) 122,214 78,524  120,620 73,327 

Total (Boe/d) 34,457 27,602  35,026 26,613 

Average Production by Area  

 
 

Q2 2015 
  

Q2 2014 

 

 

Oil 
(Bbl/d) 

NGLs 
(Bbl/d) 

Natural 
Gas 

(Mcf/d) 

Total 
(Boe/d) 

 

Oil 
(Bbl/d) 

NGLs 
(Bbl/d) 

Natural 
Gas 

(Mcf/d) 
Total 

(Boe/d) 
           

Peace River – Montney 4,557 252 23,749 8,767  5,492 224 21,741 9,340 

 – Other 724 82 8,182 2,170  998 108 12,324 3,160 

Deep Basin – Edson 594 2,429 26,058 7,366  38 50 1,502     338 

 – Kakwa/Elmworth 87 991 27,765 5,706  64 360 6,049 1,433 

Redwater – Viking 2,812 48 2,608 3,295  4,855 70 4,152 5,617 

 – Other 649 87 14,330 3,124  1,028 244 8,915 2,758 

Boyer  6 3 15,898 2,659  - 1 18,272 3,046 

Other  - 767 3,624 1,370  1 981 5,569 1,910 

  9,429 4,659 122,214 34,457  12,476 2,038 78,524 27,602 

 

  Six months ended June 30, 2015  Six months ended June 30, 2014 

 

 

Oil 
(Bbl/d) 

NGLs 
(Bbl/d) 

Natural 
Gas 

(Mcf/d) 
Total 

(Boe/d) 

 

Oil 
(Bbl/d) 

NGLs 
(Bbl/d) 

Natural 
Gas 

(Mcf/d) 
Total 

(Boe/d) 
           

Peace River – Montney 4,830 282 24,197 9,145  5,485 205 21,763 9,317 

 – Other 789 117 9,022 2,410  1,105 149 12,681 3,368 

Deep Basin – Edson 659 2,495 25,670 7,432  19 27 802 180 

 – Kakwa/Elmworth 53 1,071 25,208 5,325  32 181 3,042 720 

Redwater – Viking 3,014 45 2,768 3,520  4,750 56 4,119 5,493 

 – Other 640 102 14,758 3,202  1,188 189 8,466 2,788 

Boyer  3 2 15,520 2,592  - 1 17,337 2,890 

Other  2 819 3,477 1,400  1 1,004 5,117 1,857 

  9,990 4,933 120,620 35,026  12,580 1,812 73,327 26,613 
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During the second quarter of 2015, production averaged 34,457 Boe/d, an increase of 6,855 Boe/d from 
27,602 Boe/d in 2014. Production in the first half of 2015 averaged 35,026 Boe/d, an increase of 8,413 
Boe/d from 26,613 Boe/d in 2014. The production increases resulted primarily from the Deep Basin 
acquisitions in 2014.  
 
Peace River Montney production averaged 8,767 Boe/d in the second quarter of 2015, compared to 9,340 
Boe/d in 2014. Over the first six months of 2015, production averaged 9,145 Boe/d compared to 9,317 
Boe/d in 2014. The lower production volumes are primarily a result of reduced capital spending in the area 
over the past 12 months, partially offset by lower declines.  
 
Deep Basin production averaged 13,072 Boe/d in the second quarter of 2015 compared to 1,771 Boe/d in 
2014. Over the first six months of 2015, production averaged 12,757 Boe/d compared to 900 Boe/d in 2014. 
Since acquiring the Deep Basin assets in May and August of 2014, Long Run has drilled 15.0 successful 
net wells on the acquired properties. As a result, production in the second quarter of 2015 is up 1,828 Boe/d 
to 13,072 Boe/d from 11,244 Boe/d in the fourth quarter of 2014.  
 
Redwater Viking production for the second quarter of 2015 averaged 3,295 Boe/d compared to 5,617 Boe/d 
in 2014. Production averaged 3,520 Boe/d over the first six months of 2015 compared to 5,493 Boe/d in 
2014. The lower production volumes are primarily a result of reduced capital spending in the area over the 
past 12 months, partially offset by lower declines. Long Run invested $3.4 million in the Redwater Viking 
over the first six months of 2015 compared to $48.0 million in 2014.  

Commodity Pricing 

 

   Six months ended June 30 

 Q2 2015 Q2 2014  2015 2014 
      

Benchmark pricing      

 WTI (US$/Bbl) 57.96 102.98  53.29 100.81 

 Edmonton Light Sweet (CDN$/Bbl) 67.73 105.62  59.84 102.64 

 AECO ($/Mcf) 2.66 4.69  2.71 5.17 

 CDN$/US$ exchange rate 1.23 1.09  1.24 1.10 
      

Prices, excluding derivatives      

 Liquids ($/Bbl)      

 Light oil  58.53 97.50  49.97 94.43 

 Heavy oil 53.33 81.79  46.03 79.95 

    Total Oil 58.33 96.65  49.84 93.36 

 NGLs  24.48 72.76  23.44 78.89 

 Total  47.13 93.30  41.11 91.54 

 Natural Gas ($/Mcf) 2.89 4.89  2.84 5.38 

 Total ($/Boe) 29.80 63.17  27.57 64.47 

      

Prices, including derivatives      

 Liquids ($/Bbl)      

 Oil  72.03 89.59  68.52 87.73 

 NGLs  24.48 72.76  23.44 78.89 

 Total  56.31 87.23  53.61 86.62 

 Natural Gas ($/Mcf) 3.30 4.61  3.23 5.03 

 Total ($/Boe) 35.04 59.13  34.24 60.82 
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The Company’s financial results are influenced by fluctuations in commodity prices, exchange rates and 
Canadian price differentials. Long Run’s average oil price excluding derivatives for the second quarter of 
2015 was $58.33/Bbl, a decrease of $38.32/Bbl from 2014. Our average oil price excluding derivatives 
during the first six months of 2015 was $49.84/Bbl, a decrease of $43.52/Bbl over 2014. The decreases 
resulted from lower West Texas Intermediate benchmark pricing, partially offset by an increase in the U.S 
dollar exchange rate.  
 
Long Run’s NGLs price in the second quarter of 2015 was $24.48/Bbl, a decrease of $48.28/Bbl over 2014. 
Our average NGLs price during the first six months of 2015 was $23.44/Bbl, a decrease of $55.45/Bbl over 
2014. The decreases were a result of lower market prices as well as the change in our NGLs product mix 
due to the Deep Basin acquisitions in 2014.  
 
In the second quarter of 2015, the Company’s natural gas price excluding derivatives was $2.89/Mcf, a 
decrease of $2.00/Mcf over 2014. Our average natural gas price during the first six months of 2015 was 
$2.84/Mcf, a decrease of $2.54/Mcf from 2014. The decreases were primarily due to the weakening of 
AECO benchmark pricing. The Company’s natural gas price reflects premiums received for the liquids 
content included in the natural gas production.  
 
The Company enters into financial derivative contracts for the purpose of protecting funds flow from 
operations from the volatility of commodity prices. During the second quarter of 2015, our oil price of 
$72.03/Bbl included a realized gain on derivatives of $13.70/Bbl. The Company’s natural gas price of 
$3.30/Mcf included a realized gain on derivatives of $0.41/Mcf. During the six months ended June 30, 2015, 
Long Run’s oil price including financial derivative contracts of $68.52/Bbl included a gain on the derivative 
contract of $18.68/Bbl. The Company’s natural gas price including derivatives of $3.23/Mcf included a 
realized gain on the derivative contracts of $0.39/Mcf.    
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Operating Results 

Operating Netback & Funds Flow from Operations 

    
 Q2 2015  Q2 2014 

 $000s $/Boe  $000s $/Boe 

    
  

Revenues 93,436 29.80     158,678 63.17 

Royalties (6,400) (2.04)  (17,598) (7.01) 

 87,036 27.76  141,080 56.16 

Realized gain (loss) on derivatives 16,432 5.24  (10,157) (4.04) 

Transportation costs (4,784) (1.53)  (5,287) (2.10) 

Operating costs (36,207) (11.55)  (37,614) (14.98) 

Operating netback 62,477 19.92  88,022 35.04 

General and administration  (7,929) (2.53)  (9,134) (3.64) 

Interest (8,624) (2.75)  (5,507) (2.19) 

Exploration expenses - -  48 0.02 

Capital and other taxes - -  - - 

Funds flow from operations
1
 45,924 14.64  73,429 29.23 

1 
See Non-GAAP Measures section.      

 

 Six months ended June 30 

  2015  2014 

 $000s $/Boe  $000s $/Boe 
      

Revenues 174,760 27.57  310,564 64.47 

Royalties (12,721) (2.01)  (36,064) (7.49) 

 162,039 25.56  274,500 56.98 

Realized gain (loss) on derivatives 42,277 6.67  (17,579) (3.65) 

Transportation costs (10,205) (1.61)  (10,830) (2.25) 

Operating costs (77,391) (12.21)  (73,808) (15.32) 

Operating netback 116,720 18.41  172,283 35.76 

General and administration  (14,335) (2.26)  (17,863) (3.71) 

Interest (16,499) (2.60)  (10,423) (2.16) 

Exploration expenses (4) -  (518) (0.11) 

Capital and other taxes - -  - - 

Funds flow from operations
1
 85,882 13.55  143,479 29.78 

1 
See Non-GAAP Measures section. 
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Second quarter 2015 compared to second quarter 2014 

During the second quarter of 2015, funds flow from operations was $45.9 million, a decrease of $27.5 
million from the second quarter of 2014 primarily resulting from the following: 

- Lower commodity prices, excluding derivatives, decreased revenue by $55.5 million. Of this total, 
$32.7 million was attributable to lower oil prices, $14.3 million to lower natural gas prices and $9.0 
million to lower NGLs prices; and 

- Lower oil production decreased revenue by $27.0 million as a result of reduced capital spending over 
the past 12 months at Redwater and Peace River.  

Partially offset by: 

- Higher natural gas and NGLs production increased revenue by $17.3 million. Higher production 
volumes were attributable to the Deep Basin properties acquired in 2014 and our successful Cardium 
drilling program. Of the total revenue increase, natural gas production contributed $11.5 million and 
NGLs production contributed $5.8 million; 

- The realized gain on financial derivative contracts of $16.4 million compared to a loss of $10.2 million 
in 2014. During 2015, Long Run realized gains on oil derivative contracts of $11.8 million and on 
natural gas derivative contracts of $4.6 million; and  

- Royalties were $11.2 million lower in 2015, averaging 7% of revenue compared to 11% in 2014. 
Lower royalties resulted from lower commodity prices as well as lower oil production volumes.  

 
Operating costs for 2015 averaged $11.55/Boe compared to $14.98/Boe in 2014, reflecting the addition of 
the lower cost Deep Basin assets and lower utilities, fuel and chemical costs.  
 
General and administration expense for 2015 averaged $2.53/Boe compared to $3.64/Boe in 2014. The 
higher expense in 2014 was primarily due to transaction costs associated with the Deep Basin asset 
acquisition.  
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Six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to six months ended June 30, 2014 

During the first six months of 2015, funds flow from operations was $85.9 million, a decrease of $57.6 
million from the first six months of 2014 primarily resulting from the following: 

- Lower commodity prices, excluding derivatives, decreased revenue by $129.9 million. Of this total, 
$79.0 million was attributable to lower oil prices, $33.7 million to lower natural gas prices and $18.2 
million to lower NGLs prices;  

- Lower oil production decreased revenue by $43.4 million as a result of reduced capital spending over 
the past 12 months at Redwater and Peace River; and 

- Higher interest expense decreased revenues by $6.0 million due mainly to a higher average debt 
balance. Interest rates are anticipated to average approximately 6.5% in 2015.  

Partially offset by: 

- Higher natural gas and NGLs production increased revenue by $37.6 million. Higher production 
volumes were attributable to the Deep Basin acquisitions made in 2014 and our successful Cardium 
drilling programs over the past year. Of the total revenue increase, natural gas production contributed 
$24.3 million and NGLs production contributed $13.2 million; 

- The realized gain on financial derivative contracts of $42.3 million compared to a loss of $17.6 million 
in 2014. During 2015, Long Run realized gains on oil derivative contracts of $33.8 million and on 
natural gas derivative contracts of $8.6 million; and  

- Royalties were $23.4 million lower in 2015, averaging 7% of revenue compared to 12% in 2014. 
Lower royalties resulted from lower commodity prices as well as lower oil production volumes. 
Royalty rates are expected to average approximately 10 - 11% in 2015. 

 
Operating costs for 2015 averaged $12.21/Boe compared to $15.32/Boe in 2014, reflecting the addition of 
the lower cost Deep Basin assets and lower utilities, fuel and chemical costs. Annual operating costs are 
expected to average $13.25/Boe for 2015.  
 
General and administration expense for 2015 averaged $2.26/Boe compared to $3.71/Boe in 2014. The 
higher expense in 2014 was primarily a result of transaction costs associated with the Deep Basin asset 
acquisition and higher employee costs. Annual general and administration expense is expected to average 
$2.50/Boe for 2015. 
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Other Income & Expenses  

   Six months ended June 30 

($000s) Q2 2015 Q2 2014  2015 2014 
      

Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives (27,587) 972  (35,062) (9,811) 

Share-based compensation  (823) (593)  (1,773) (1,175) 

Accretion (2,665)  (2,659)  (5,340) (4,781) 

Depletion and depreciation (58,103) (50,460)  (118,687) (100,123) 

Gain (loss) on disposal of assets  (6,882) 7,356  (4,739) 9,684 

Deferred income tax recovery (expense) - (7,203)  6,765 (9,660) 

 (96,060) (52,587)  (158,836) (115,866) 

Funds flow from operations
1
 45,924 73,429  85,882 143,479 

Net earnings (loss) (50,136) 20,842  (72,954) 27,613 

1 
See Non-GAAP Measures section.      

 

Second quarter 2015 compared to second quarter 2014 

In comparing the second quarter of 2015 to the second quarter of 2014: 

- There was an unrealized loss on financial derivative contracts of $27.6 million compared to a gain of 
$1 million in 2014. In 2015, an unrealized loss of $24.5 million was recognized on our oil derivative 
contracts and $3.6 million was recognized on our natural gas derivative contracts. 

- Depletion and depreciation expense of $58.1 million increased $7.6 million due to increased 
production volumes partially offset by a lower depletion rate. The depletion rate for 2015 was 
$18.55/Boe compared to $20.10/Boe in 2014. The lower depletion rate in 2015 reflects the impact of 
the impairment taken at the end of 2014.  

- The loss on disposal of assets of $6.9 million compares to a gain of $7.4 million in 2014. The loss in 
2015 is related primarily to the disposal of a minor property in our Peace River area. The gain in 2014 
related primarily to the disposition of our heavy oil properties and an overriding royalty in our Peace 
River area. 

- A deferred income tax recovery was not recorded in 2015 due to the impact of lower commodity 
pricing on the estimated realization of the Company’s tax pools.  
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Six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to six months ended June 30, 2014 
 
In comparing the six months ended June 30, 2015 to the six months ended June 30, 2014: 

- There was an unrealized loss on financial derivative contracts of $35.1 million compared to a loss of 
$9.8 million in 2014. In 2015, an unrealized loss of $30.2 million was recognized on our oil derivative 
contracts and $5.1 million was recognized on our natural gas derivative contracts. 

- Depletion and depreciation expense of $118.7 million increased $18.6 million from 2014 due to 
increased production volumes partially offset by a lower depletion rate. The depletion rate for 2015 
was $18.70/Boe compared to $20.80/Boe in 2014. The lower depletion rate in 2015 reflects the 
impact of the impairment taken at the end of 2014. 

- The loss on disposal of assets of $4.7 million compares to a gain of $9.7 million in 2014. The loss in 
2015 is related primarily to the disposal of a minor property in our Peace River area. The gain in 2014 
related primarily to the disposition of our heavy oil properties and an overriding royalty in our Peace 
River area. 

- A deferred income tax recovery of $6.8 million was recorded in 2015 on a loss before tax of $79.7 
million. The deferred income tax recovery was limited to $6.8 million due to the impact of lower 
commodity pricing on the estimated realization of the Company’s tax pools. A deferred income tax 
expense of $9.7 million was recognized in 2014 on earnings before tax of $37.3 million. 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Net Debt  

($000s) 
June 30,  

2015 
December 31, 

2014 

   
Bank debt – current  245,000 100,000 
                 – long-term  380,943 511,717 

 625,943 611,717 
Working capital deficiency 8,303 52,881 
Convertible debentures – face value  75,000 75,000 

Net debt
1
 709,246 739,598 

1 
See Non-GAAP Measures section. 

The Company’s net debt at June 30, 2015 decreased $30.4 million from December 31, 2014, primarily 
attributable to proceeds from dispositions and funds flow from operations exceeding capital expenditures. 
The $30.4 million net debt reduction in the first half of 2015 is on track to meet our debt reduction target of 
$100 million for the year.   
 
The capital intensive nature of the Company’s activities generally results in the Company carrying a working 
capital deficit, as reflected in the net debt calculation. The Company maintains sufficient unused credit 
facilities to satisfy working capital deficiencies. At June 30, 2015, Long Run had drawn $625.9 million 
against the Company’s credit facilities and had letters of credit outstanding totaling $6.1 million, leaving 
$63.0 million of borrowing capacity available.  

Credit Facilities 

On May 29, 2015, the Company completed the semi-annual review of its credit facilities with its banking 
syndicate. Credit facilities were maintained at $695 million. The amended credit facilities consist of a $410 
million revolving syndicated facility, a $40 million revolving operating facility and a $245 million non-
revolving syndicated facility. At June 30, 2015, $625.9 million was drawn against the credit facilities 
(December 31, 2014 - $611.7 million). 
 
The revolving syndicated facility and the revolving operating facility, which comprise the Company’s 
borrowing base facilities, are reviewed semi-annually and terminate on May 31, 2017 unless extended. The 
non-revolving syndicated facility is due on May 29, 2016. Prior to May 29, 2016, proceeds received on the 
aggregate sale of assets in excess of $30 million are required to be applied against the non-revolving 
syndicated facility. 
 
During 2015, Long Run plans to repay $100 million of outstanding debt primarily through disposition 
proceeds and funds flow from operations exceeding capital expenditures. The Company plans to repay the 
remaining $145 million of debt on the non-revolving syndicated facility due May 29, 2016 through further 
strategic and financial means, which may include additional asset dispositions and alternative debt 
refinancing. 
 
Under the borrowing base facilities, total borrowings cannot exceed the borrowing base, which is 
determined by the lenders on a semi-annual basis, or upon the occurrence of a material event. The level of 
the borrowing base is determined by the lenders based upon their review of, among other things, the 
Company’s reserves and the value thereof, utilizing commodity prices determined by the lenders which may 
be different than those utilized by the Company’s independent reserve evaluator. The next borrowing base 
review will occur prior to November 30, 2015. 
 
Security for the credit facilities at June 30, 2015 included a demand debenture for $1.5 billion which 
provides for a first ranking security interest and floating charge over all of the assets and property of the 
Company. 
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The credit facilities bear interest at the prime rate or Libor rate, plus a margin, and in respect of banker’s 
acceptances requires the payment of a stamping fee equal to a margin. The margins applicable to the 
borrowing base facilities range from 1.00% per annum to 4.50% per annum, based upon the ratio of the 
Company’s debt to earnings before interest, taxes, exploration expenses, and all non-cash items including 
depletion and depreciation, unrealized gain/loss on derivatives, gain/loss on sale of assets, accretion and 
share based compensation (“Bank EBITDA”). Interest and fees payable on the non-revolving syndicated 
facility are based upon the borrowing base facility margins plus 3.50%. For the six months ended June 30, 
2015, the effective interest rate, including standby and other fees, was 4.7% (June 30, 2014 – 4.4%).  
 
At June 30, 2015, the Company was in compliance with all covenants, obligations and conditions of its 
credit agreement. The covenants under the credit facilities include covenants which relate to senior debt 
and total debt to Bank EBITDA, interest coverage, permitted dispositions, permitted hedging and permitted 
distributions (regular cash dividends to shareholders are not permitted until the $245 million non-revolving 
syndicated facility has been repaid).  
 
As part of the credit facilities review, the financial covenants were amended to provide increased financial 
flexibility. The revised financial covenants require the Company’s ratios of senior debt to Bank EBITDA and 
total debt to Bank EBITDA to be less than 4.50x from May 31, 2015 to March 31, 2016 and less than 5.0x 
from April 1, 2016 to June 30, 2016 (June 30, 2015 – 2.37:1). After June 30, 2016, the bank covenants 
require a senior debt to Bank EBITDA ratio of less than 3.0x and a total debt to Bank EBITDA ratio of less 
than 3.5x. The interest coverage ratio, defined as Bank EBITDA to interest expense, is required to be 
greater than 2.75x until June 30, 2016 and greater than 3.5x for each fiscal quarter after June 30, 2016 
(June 30, 2015 – 8.31:1). The convertible debentures issued in January 2014 are not considered debt for 
the debt to Bank EBITDA ratio calculations under the credit agreement. Commodity hedges are permitted 
on up to 75% of 2015 forecasted oil and NGLs and natural gas production net of royalties (2016 - 75%; 
2017 - 50%). Interest rate hedges are permitted up to 75% of the total debt balance. Further details on the 
calculations of the covenants can be found in the Company’s credit facility agreement filed on SEDAR at 
www.sedar.com on June 3, 2015 under the Company’s profile.  
 

Convertible Debentures  

On January 28, 2014, the Company issued convertible unsecured subordinated debentures (the 
“convertible debentures”) in the principal amount of $75 million at par. The convertible debentures bear 
interest at an annual rate of 6.40%, payable semi-annually in arrears. Prior to maturity on January 31, 2019, 
the convertible debentures are convertible into Common Shares at a conversion price of $7.40 per 
Common Share, subject to adjustments in certain events.  
 

Share Capital  
 

# of units (000s) July 29, 2015 June 30, 2015 December 31, 2014 

    

Common Shares 193,498 193,498 193,498 

Options 8,211 8,268 8,879 

Restricted Awards 4,839 4,884 - 

 
In January 2015, a total of 5.2 million restricted awards were granted. Each restricted award entitles the 
holder to a Long Run Common Share or the value of a Long Run Common Share (subject to certain 
adjustments, including for dividends paid on the Common Shares) on the vesting date. The Company 
currently intends to settle the awards with equity. The awards vest equally over three years, on the first, 
second and third anniversaries of the grant date.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.sedar.com/
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Dividends  

In the second quarter of 2015, no dividends were declared or paid to shareholders. The monthly dividend 
was suspended in February 2015 as the Company focuses on strengthening the balance sheet. During the 
six months ended June 30, 2015, $3.4 million in dividends had been declared and paid (June 30, 2014 - 
$27.1 million in dividends were declared, of which $21.9 million had been paid).  
 

Capital Structure  

The Company's primary capital management objective is to strengthen our financial position and financial 
flexibility. To manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust capital spending, dispose of properties, 
adjust dividends declared, issue new shares, issue new debt or repay existing debt.  

 
In managing its capital structure, the Company monitors financial metrics as indicators of overall financial 
strength. The financial metrics the Company currently monitors include net debt to funds flow from 
operations and debt to debt plus equity. The Company's objective is to target net debt to funds flow from 
operations at or below a ratio of 1.5 and debt to debt plus equity at a ratio at or below 0.4. While the 
Company may exceed these rates from time to time, efforts are made after a period of variation to bring the 
measures back in line. For the calculation of these metrics, see Note 10 to the interim financial statements 
for the six months ended June 30, 2015.  
 
The net debt to funds flow from operations at June 30, 2015 was calculated based on second quarter funds 
flow annualized. The resulting net debt to funds flow from operations of 3.86 times reflects the lower 
commodity prices experienced in the second quarter. At June 30, 2015, the Company had a debt to debt 
plus equity ratio of 0.52 times. During 2015, the Company plans to reduce outstanding debt by $100 million, 
primarily through asset dispositions. The Company plans to repay the remaining $145 million due May 29, 
2016 on the non-revolving syndicated facility through further strategic and financial means, which may 
include additional asset dispositions and alternative debt financing.  
 

Contractual Obligations and Contingencies 

Contractual Obligations 

($000s) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter 
        

Total 
        

Operating leases 2,253 4,329 6,041 7,753 7,482 50,604 78,462 

Processing 2,113 6,024 6,024 6,024 6,024 31,941 58,150 

Transportation 5,827 14,723 13,242 9,562 4,610 9,495 57,459 

Fractionation 1,462 2,843 2,653 650 - - 7,608 

Capital 6,504 9,969 7,501 308 - - 24,282 

Commitments 18,159 37,888 35,461 24,297 18,116 92,040 225,961 

        

Bank loan  245,000 380,943 - - - 625,943 

Convertible debentures
1
 - - - - 75,000 - 75,000 

 18,159 282,888 416,404 24,297 93,116 92,040 926,904 
1
Face value 
 

At June 30, 2015, the Company is committed under operating leases for office space, contracts related to 
the processing of natural gas, transportation of oil and natural gas and NGLs, fractionation of natural gas 
liquids, and capital commitments for drilling rig services. Commitments increased by $34.3 million from 
December 31, 2014 as a result of an increase in processing, transportation and drilling commitments.  
 
Other than the operating leases, the Company has no off-balance sheet financing arrangements. 
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Contingencies  

The Company is involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the normal course of business. The 
Company does not expect that the outcome of these proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the 
Company as a whole. 

Risk Management  

Long Run is engaged in the development, acquisition, exploration and production of oil and natural gas in 
western Canada. The Company is exposed to a number of risks, both financial and operational, through the 
pursuit of its strategic objectives. Actively managing these risks improves the ability to effectively execute 
our business strategy. Financial risks associated with the petroleum industry include fluctuations in 
commodity prices, interest rates, currency exchange rates and the cost of goods and services. Financial 
risks also include third party credit risk and liquidity risk. Operational risks include reservoir performance 
uncertainties, competition, and regulatory, environment and safety concerns. The nature of these risks has 
not changed substantially since December 31, 2014. 
 
For a further and more in-depth discussion of risk management, see the Company’s annual financial 
statements and MD&A for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the Company’s Annual Information Form 
for the year ended December 31, 2014.  
 

Commodity Price  

To partially mitigate exposure to commodity price risk, the Company enters into various financial derivative 
instruments. The Company has entered into oil and natural gas derivative contracts, including costless 
collars, fixed price contracts, and calls. At June 30, 2015, the Company had contracts for oil volumes of 
4,500 Bbl/d for the remainder of 2015 and 1,000 Bbl/d contracted for 2016. At June 30, 2015, the Company 
had contracts for natural gas volumes of approximately 62.6 MMcf/d for the remainder of 2015 and 37.9 
MMcf/d contracted for 2016. Further details on the derivative contracts can be found in Note 13 of the 
interim financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2015.  
 
In the first six months of 2015, the Company realized a $42.3 million gain as a result of its commodity price 
risk management. The realized gain included a $33.8 million gain on oil financial derivative contracts and a 
$8.6 million gain on natural gas contracts. In the first six months of 2015, the Company recognized an 
unrealized loss on oil financial derivative contracts of $30.2 million and an unrealized loss on natural gas 
contracts of $5.1 million. At June 30, 2015, the fair value of oil derivatives was an asset of $19.7 million and 
the fair value of natural gas derivatives was an asset of $10.4 million.  
 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk arises through excess financial obligations due over available financial assets at any point in 
time. The Company’s objective in managing liquidity risk is to maintain sufficient capital in order to meet its 
current and future liquidity requirements. The Company is exposed to liquidity risk, as well as risks related 
to the continued availability of debt and equity financing at acceptable terms.  
 
The Company’s objective in managing liquidity risk is to maintain sufficient capital in order to meet its 
liquidity requirements at any point in time. With the goal of improving liquidity in the current price 
environment, the Company is currently planning to reduce net debt by $100 million in 2015, primarily 
through disposition proceeds and funds flow from operations exceeding capital expenditures. The Company 
plans to repay the remaining $145 million of debt on the non-revolving syndicated facility due May 29, 2016 
through further strategic or financial means, which may include additional asset dispositions and alternative 
debt refinancing. 

 



  

 Long Run Exploration 
                                                                  

 

 
Second Quarter 2015 Management’s Discussion & Analysis                                                                                         21  

Critical Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Accounting Policies 

For a full understanding of the Company’s critical accounting judgments, estimates and accounting policies, 
the following should be read in conjunction with the annual audited financial statements and MD&A for the 
year ended December 31, 2014. 
 

Critical Accounting Estimates 

The Company is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting 
policies that could have a significant impact on its financial results. Actual results may differ from those 
estimates and those differences may be material. The estimates and assumptions used are subject to 
updates based on experience and the application of new information. Further details on the basis of 
presentation and significant accounting policies can be found in the annual financial statements and MD&A 
for the year ended December 31, 2014. There have been no significant changes to the accounting policies 
since December 31, 2014.  
 

Future Accounting Pronouncements 

There were no new or amended standards issued during the six months ended June 30, 2015 that are 
applicable to the Company in the current or future periods. A description of standards and interpretations 
that will be adopted by the Company in future periods can be found in Note 4 of the annual financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2014. 
 

Control Environment 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

The Company's Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") have designed, or 
caused to be designed under their supervision, disclosure controls and procedures to provide reasonable 
assurance that: (i) material information relating to the Company is made known to the Company's CEO and 
CFO by others, particularly during the period in which the annual and interim filings are being prepared; and 
(ii) information required to be disclosed by the Company in its annual filings, interim filings or other reports 
filed or submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within 
the time period specified in securities legislation. 
 

Internal Controls over Financial Reporting  

The CEO and CFO have designed, or caused to be designed under their supervision, internal controls over 
financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the Company's financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles applicable to the Company.  
 
The Company is required to disclose any change in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting 
that occurred during the Company’s most recent interim period that has materially affected, or is reasonably 
likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting. No material changes in 
the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting were identified during such period that have 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal controls over 
financial reporting.  
 
It should be noted that a control system, including the Company's disclosure and internal controls and 
procedures, no matter how well conceived, can provide only reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that 
the objectives of the control system will be met and it should not be expected that the disclosure and 
internal controls and procedures will prevent all errors or fraud. 
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Detailed Quarterly Results 

The Corporation’s quarterly funds flow from operations is significantly impacted by changes in production 
volumes, fluctuations in commodity prices, exchange rates and realized gains and losses on financial 
derivative contracts. In addition to these items, net earnings are impacted by impairments and unrealized 
gains and losses on financial derivative contracts. Acquisitions and divestitures can also have a significant 
impact on Long Run’s results. The following significant transactions have impacted the Company’s quarterly 
results: 

 
- During the first quarter of 2015, Long Run suspended its monthly dividend. The dividend was 

suspended in order to focus on strengthening the balance sheet and directing funds to maintaining 
operational momentum in our key areas. 
 

- During the fourth quarter of 2014, Long Run recorded property impairment charges of $400.0 million 
($300.0 million after tax) at Peace River, the Deep Basin, Redwater and Kaybob. The impairment 
charges were a result of the drop in forecast commodity prices at December 31, 2014.  
 

- During the third quarter of 2014, Long Run completed the Crocotta acquisition on August 6, 2014, for 
total consideration of $346.9 million. Production from the properties averaged approximately 6,200 
Boe/d from August 6 through December 31, 2014, in the Deep Basin area. 
 

- During the second quarter of 2014, Long Run completed the Deep Basin property acquisition on May 
30, 2014, for total consideration of $228.8 million. Production from the property averaged 
approximately 5,200 Boe/d from May 30 through December 31, 2014, in the Deep Basin and 
Redwater areas. 
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 2015  2014  2013 

                Q2 Q1 Q1  Q4       Q3         Q2        Q1        Q4          Q3 

Funds flow from operations1 
($000s) 45,924 39,958  68,178 80,199 73,429 70,050  55,934 62,304 

   Per share, basic1 0.24 0.21  0.35 0.45 0.55 0.56  0.45 0.50 

   Per share, diluted1 0.24 0.21  0.35 0.45 0.54 0.56  0.44 0.50 

           

Net earnings (loss) ($000s) (50,136) (22,818)  (258,652) 40,644 20,842 6,771  (5,531) 9,524 

   Per share, basic  (0.26) (0.12)  (1.34) 0.23 0.16 0.05  (0.04) 0.08 

   Per share, diluted (0.26) (0.12)  (1.34) 0.23 0.15 0.05  (0.04) 0.08 

           

Capital ($000s)           

Drilling and completion 4,484 31,577  40,928 52,530 34,851 75,114  30,750 72,746 

Plant and facilities 1,967 12,202  26,935 19,740 16,441 23,370  8,760 18,699 

Geological and geophysical 42 778  247 1,951 4,295 939  566 601 

Other assets 2,277 758  1,984 1,538 1,743 1,425  1,561 1,091 

Capital expenditures 8,770 45,315  70,094 75,759 57,330 100,848  41,637 93,137 

Net acquisitions 

(dispositions) (9,530) (1,392)  (1,797) (8,147) 213,716 (3,679)  86,328 3,331 

Capital investment (760) 43,923  68,297 67,612 271,046 97,169  127,965 96,468 

           

Wells drilled (net)           

Peace                          - Montney - 5.0  1.0 12.0 11.0 17.5  9.5 19.5 

                          - Other - -  - - - 2.0  - - 

Deep Basin - Edson - 3.0  2.0 3.0 - -  - - 

                                - Kakwa/Elmworth - 1.0  6.0 - - -  - - 

Redwater                       - Viking - -  1.0 6.0 10.0 27.0  1.0 26.6 

          - Other - -  - - 1.0 -  - 4.0 

Other - -  - - - 1.0  1.0 - 

Total - 9.0  10.0 21.0 22.0 47.5  11.5 50.1 

           

Production            

Liquids (Bbl/d)           

 Light oil  9,059 10,242  11,895 12,708 11,808 11,491  11,811 10,322 

 Heavy oil  370 315  235 363 668 1,193  1,440 1,387 

 NGLs  4,659 5,210  5,609 3,031 2,038 1,584  1,520 1,478 

 14,088 15,767  17,739 16,102 14,514 14,268  14,771 13,187 

Natural Gas (Mcf/d) 122,214 119,007  112,576 112,161 78,524 68,071  73,392 72,634 

Total (Boe/d) 34,457 35,602  36,502 34,795 27,602 25,613  27,003 25,293 

           

Production by area (Boe/d)           

Peace                          - Montney 8,767 9,527  10,661 10,918 9,340 9,294  11,500 10,101 

                          - Other 2,170 2,651  2,650 3,054 3,160 3,579  2,169 1,960 

Deep Basin - Edson 7,366 7,498  7,665 4,654 338 19  - - 

                                - Kakwa/Elmworth 5,706 4,942  3,579 3,207 1,433 -  - - 

Redwater                       - Viking 3,295 3,749  4,451 5,122 5,617 5,365  6,285 5,875 

          - Other 3,124 3,279  3,242 3,196 2,758 2,819  2,327 2,022 

Boyer 2,659 2,523  2,727 2,929 3,046 2,733  2,861 3,241 

Other 1,370 1,433  1,527 1,715 1,910 1,804  1,861 2,094 

Total 34,457 35,602  36,502 34,795 27,602 25,613  27,003 25,293 
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 2015  2014  2013 

    Q2 Q1  Q4       Q3         Q2        Q1        Q4          Q3 

Benchmark pricing           

WTI (US$/Bbl) 57.96 48.57  73.12 97.21 102.98 98.68  97.46 105.83 
Edmonton Light Sweet 
(CDN$/Bbl) 67.73 51.85  75.65 97.18 105.62 99.83  86.58 104.98 

AECO ($/Mcf) 2.66 2.76  3.75 4.02 4.69 5.72  3.53 2.43 

CDN$/US$ exchange rate 1.23 1.24  1.13 1.09 1.09 1.10  1.05 1.04 

           
Prices, excluding 
derivatives           

Liquids ($/Bbl)           

 Light oil  58.53 42.32  66.73 88.08 97.50 91.24  75.06 95.47 

 Heavy oil 53.33 37.36  60.71 81.47 81.79 78.90  62.69 87.40 

 NGLs  24.48 22.50  30.02 57.98 72.76 86.87  69.21 76.05 

 Total  47.13 35.67  55.04 82.26 93.30 89.72  73.25 92.44 

Natural Gas ($/Mcf) 2.89 2.80  4.13 4.29 4.89 5.96  3.73 2.65 

Total ($/Boe) 29.80 25.38  39.71 52.16 63.17 65.89  50.24 55.84 

           

Prices, including derivatives           

Oil ($/Bbl) 72.03 65.34  79.35 84.66 89.59 85.89  71.14 87.44 

NGLs ($/Bbl) 24.48 22.50  30.02 57.98 72.76 86.87  69.21 76.05 

Natural Gas ($/Mcf) 3.30 3.17  4.15 4.23 4.61 5.53  4.04 3.23 

Total ($/Boe) 35.04 33.45  43.92 50.75 59.13 62.67  49.78 54.29 

 
Netback ($/Boe)           

  Revenues  29.80 25.38  39.71 52.16 63.17 65.89  50.24 55.84 

  Royalties (2.04) (1.97)  (4.42) (6.05) (7.01) (8.01)  (7.33) (6.61) 

  Realized gain (loss) on 
derivatives 5.24 8.07  4.21 (1.42) (4.04) (3.22)  (0.46) (1.54) 

  Transportation costs (1.53) (1.69)  (1.75) (1.65) (2.10) (2.41)  (2.00) (2.50) 

  Operating costs  (11.55) (12.85)  (12.71) (11.63) (14.98) (15.70)  (13.36) (14.45) 

Operating Netback 19.92 16.94  25.04 31.41 35.04 36.55  27.09 30.74 

  G&A  (2.53) (2.00)  (2.32) (3.92) (3.64) (3.79)  (2.82) (2.31) 

  Interest  (2.75) (2.46)  (2.39) (2.36) (2.19) (2.13)  (1.73) (1.56) 

Corporate Netback 14.64 12.48  20.33 25.13 29.21 30.63  22.54 26.87 

           
Funds flow from operations1 

($000s)           

  Revenues  93,436 81,324  133,354 166,978 158,678 151,886  124,816 129,923 

  Royalties (6,400) (6,321)  (14,835) (19,377) (17,598) (18,466)  (18,213) (15,377) 

Realized gain (loss) on 
derivatives 16,432 25,845  14,145 (4,529) (10,157) (7,422)  (1,145) (3,585) 

  Transportation costs (4,785) (5,421)  (5,891) (5,272) (5,287) (5,543)  (4,971) (5,816) 

  Operating costs  (36,206) (41,184)  (42,684) (37,238) (37,614) (36,194)  (33,198) (33,614) 

 62,477 54,243  84,089 100,562 88,022 84,261  67,289 71,531 

  G&A  (7,929) (6,406)  (7,793) (12,537) (9,134) (8,729)  (7,017) (5,378) 

  Interest  (8,624) (7,875)  (8,038) (7,566) (5,507) (4,916)  (4,300) (3,633) 

  Other - (4)  (80) (260) 48 (566)  (38) (216) 

 45,924 39,958  68,178 80,199 73,429 70,050  55,934 62,304 
1 

See Non-GAAP Measures section. 
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Non-GAAP Measures  

The MD&A contains terms commonly used in the oil and natural gas industry, such as funds flow from 
operations, funds flow from operations per share and net debt. These terms are not defined by IFRS and 
therefore may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. There are measures 
commonly used in the oil and gas industry and by Long Run to provide shareholders and potential investors 
with additional information regarding the Company’s liquidity and its ability to generate funds to finance its 
operations. These terms should not be considered an alternative to, or more meaningful than, cash 
provided by operating activities or net earnings as determined in accordance with IFRS as indicators of 
Long Run’s performance.  
 

Funds Flow from Operations  

 2015 
 

2014  2013 

($000s)  Q2 Q1  Q4 Q3 Q2      Q1    Q4    Q3 

    
    

 
  

Cash flow from        
operating activities 37,585 48,832  80,866 78,006 67,280 59,781  65,932 61,756 

Change in non-cash 
working capital 7,975 (11,491)  (18,865) (996) 5,452 8,923  (11,758) (266) 

Abandonment costs 364 2,617  6,177 3,189 697 1,346  1,760 814 

Funds flow from 
operations 45,924 39,958  68,178 80,199 73,429 70,050  55,934 62,304 

Weighted average 
outstanding shares 
(000s)           

 - Basic  193,498 193,498  193,497 176,318 134,291 125,730  125,629 125,620 

 - Diluted  193,498 193,498  193,497 177,003 135,437 126,129  126,245 125,620 
           

Funds flow from 
operations per share 
($/share)           

 - Basic 0.24 0.21  0.35 0.45 0.55 0.56  0.45 0.50 

 - Diluted 0.24 0.21  0.35 0.45 0.54 0.56  0.44 0.50 
 

  Six months ended June 30 

($000s)  2015 2014 

    

Cash flow from operating activities  86,417  127,061 

Change in non-cash working capital  (3,516) 14,375 

Abandonment costs  2,981 2,043 

Funds flow from operations  85,882 143,479 

    

Weighted average outstanding shares (000s)    

 - Basic   193,498 130,035 

 - Diluted   193,498 130,916 
    

Funds flow from operations per share ($/share)    

 - Basic  0.44 1.10 

 - Diluted  0.44 1.10 
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Net Debt  

 
($000s) 

June 30,  
2015 

December 31, 
2014 

   

Bank debt 625,943 611,717 

Working capital deficiency   

 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 75,558 132,439 

 Accounts receivable (47,818) (65,135) 

 Prepaid expenses and deposits (19,437) (14,423) 

Convertible debentures – face value 75,000 75,000 

Net Debt  709,246 739,598 

 

Advisory  

Forward-Looking Statements 

This document contains forward-looking statements and forward-looking information (collectively "forward-
looking information") within the meaning of applicable securities laws relating to the Company’s plans and 
other aspects of Long Run's anticipated future operations, management focus, objectives, strategies, 
financial, operating and production results and opportunities, including 2015 capital expenditure budget, 
nature and timing of expenditures and method of funding, drilling and development plans and the timing 
thereof, 2015 average production guidance, continuation of programs focused on cost reductions and 
selective property dispositions, use of additional cash generated from operations, cost saving initiatives and 
disposition proceeds, expected timing of response from EOR projects, timing of expansion of projects and 
possible effects thereof, expectation that unused credit facilities will be sufficient to satisfy working capital 
deficiencies, plans to repay bank debt and targeted debt reduction in the year, plans to settle restricted 
awards with equity and expected operating costs, royalty rates and general administrative expenses. 
Forward-looking information typically uses words such as "anticipate", "believe", "project", "expect", "goal", 
"plan”, "intend" or similar words suggesting future outcomes, statements that actions, events or conditions 
"may", "would", "could" or "will" be taken or occur in the future. Forward-looking statements or information 
are based on a number of factors and assumptions which have been used to develop such statements and 
information but which may prove to be incorrect. Although the Company believes that the expectations 
reflected in such forward-looking statements or information are reasonable, undue reliance should not be 
placed on forward-looking statements because the Company can give no assurance that such expectations 
will prove to be correct. In addition to other factors and assumptions which may be identified in this 
document, assumptions have been made regarding, among other things: the impact of increasing 
competition; the general stability of the economic and political environment in which the Company operates; 
the timely receipt of any required regulatory approvals; the ability of the Company to obtain qualified staff, 
equipment and services in a timely and cost efficient manner; drilling results; the ability of the operator of 
the projects which the Company has an interest in to operate the field in a safe, efficient and effective 
manner; the ability of the Company to obtain financing and access capital on acceptable terms; field 
production rates and decline rates; the ability to replace and expand oil and natural gas reserves through 
acquisition, development and exploration; the timing and costs of pipeline, storage and facility construction 
and expansion and the ability of the Company to secure adequate product transportation; the regulatory 
framework regarding royalties, taxes and environmental matters in the jurisdictions in which the Company 
operates; the ability of the Company to successfully market its oil and natural gas products; expectations 
and assumptions concerning prevailing and future commodity prices, exchange rates, interest rates, 
applicable royalty rates and tax laws; future production rates and estimates of operating costs; performance 
of existing and future wells; reserve and resource volumes; anticipated timing and results of capital 
expenditures; the success obtained in drilling new wells; the sufficiency of budgeted capital expenditures in 
carrying out planned activities; the timing, location and extent of future drilling operations; the state of the 
economy and the exploration and production business; results of operations; business prospects and 
opportunities; the availability and cost of financing, labor and services; the impact of increasing competition 
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and the effects thereof. Included herein is an estimate of Long Run's 2015 funds flow from operations 
based on assumptions provided herein and WTI US$52.50/Bbl, AECO $2.60/GJ and FX CDN/USD $0.80 
and other assumptions utilized in arriving at Long Run's capital budget. To the extent such estimate 
constitutes a financial outlook, it was approved by management March 4, 2015 and is included herein to 
provide readers with an understanding of the anticipated funds available to fund its capital expenditures, 
debt reduction and for other purposes and readers are cautioned that the information may not be 
appropriate for other purposes. 
 
These forward-looking statements sometimes include words to the effect that management believes or 
expects a stated condition or result. All estimates and statements that describe the Company’s objectives, 
goals or future plans are forward-looking statements. Since forward-looking statements address future 
events and conditions, by their very nature they involve inherent risks and uncertainties including, without 
limitation, risks associated with oil and natural gas exploration, development, exploitation, production, 
marketing and transportation, loss of markets, volatility of commodity prices, currency fluctuations, 
imprecision of reserve estimates, environmental risks, competition from other producers, inability to retain 
drilling rigs and other services, incorrect assessment of the value of acquisitions, failure to realize the 
anticipated benefits of acquisitions, delays resulting from or inability to obtain required regulatory approvals 
and ability to access sufficient capital from internal and external sources. As a consequence, Long Run’s 
actual results may differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, the forward-looking statements.  
  
Readers are cautioned that the foregoing list of factors and assumptions is not exhaustive. Additional 
information on these and other factors that could affect Long Run’s operations and financial results are 
included elsewhere herein and in reports on file with Canadian securities regulatory authorities and may be 
accessed through the SEDAR website (www.sedar.com), or at Long Run’s website 
(www.longrunexploration.com). Furthermore, the forward-looking statements contained herein are made as 
at the date hereof and Long Run does not undertake any obligation to update publicly or to revise any of the 
included forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, 
except as may be required by applicable securities laws. 
 
Oil & Natural Gas Information 

Oil and natural gas reserves and volumes are converted to a common unit of measure on a basis of six 
thousand cubic feet of natural gas to one barrel of oil. Boes may be misleading, particularly if used in 
isolation. The forgoing conversion ratio is based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily 
applicable at the burner tip and does not represent a value equivalency at the wellhead. Given that the 
value ratio based on the current price of oil as compared to natural gas is significantly different than the 
energy equivalency of six to one, utilizing a conversion on a six to one basis may be misleading as an 
indication of value. 
 
Operating netback per Boe is calculated by subtracting royalties, transportation and operating costs from 
revenues, including the realized gain (loss) on financial derivatives and dividing by total production. 
Corporate netback per Boe is calculated as operating netback less interest and general and administration 
expense and divided by total production. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.sedar.com/
http://www.longrunexploration.com/
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Abbreviations  

 
 
Oil and Natural Gas Liquids Natural Gas 

Bbl Barrels MMcf million cubic feet 
MBbl thousand barrels Mcf/d thousand cubic feet per day 
MMBbl million barrels MMcf/d million cubic feet per day 
Bbl/d barrels per day MMbtu million British Thermal Units 
NGLs natural gas liquids   
Boe barrels of oil equivalent   
MBoe thousand barrels of oil equivalent   
Boe/d barrels of oil equivalent per day   
Liquids light oil, heavy oil, and NGLs   

 
 
Additional Information  

Additional information relating to Long Run, including Long Run’s Annual Information Form, can be 
accessed on-line on SEDAR at www.sedar.com, or from the Company’s website at 
www.longrunexploration.com. 
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